NATIONS CERD

T i Distr.
Internatl_ona_l Convention on CENERAL
the Elimination CERD O SR 1167
of all Forms of 30 October 1996

Racial Discrimination ENGLI SH
Oiginal: FRENCH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON OF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Forty-ninth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 1167th MEETI NG

Held at the Pal ais des Nations, CGeneva,
on Monday, 12 August 1996, at 3 p.m

Chai rman: M. BANTON

CONTENTS
ORGANI ZATI ONAL AND OTHER MATTERS (conti nued)

Met hods of work of the Committee

Programme of work of the Committee

Thi's record 1s subject to correction

Corrections should be subnitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menorandum and al so i ncorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session

GE. 96-17799 (E)



CERD/ C/ SR. 1167
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.10 p. m

ORGANI ZATI ONAL AND OTHER MATTERS (agenda item 3) (continued)

Met hods of work of the Committee

1. The CHAIRMAN invited the experts to conment on draft chapter 1l of the
Conmittee’'s report to the General Assenbly (in-session document with no
synbol, in English only) dealing with the Committee’s nethods of work, which
nm ght be reviewed annual ly under the sane chapter.

2. M. GARVALOV, agreeing with the principle of such a review, asked

whet her its purpose was to inform Menber States about the Committee's nethods
of work or to provide themwith an analysis of the Cormttee's own position on
its work. Menmber States would be fanmiliar with the Committee's nethods of
work and if the intention was to provide an analysis, the Comittee shoul d
perhaps expand a little on the results it had obtai ned.

3. As already pointed out by M. Aboul -Nasr, the text was silent on the
application of article 15. That was certainly a very inportant question of
principle, but the Committee could not be charged with laxity, since it did
not have the informati on needed to take action

4. There were other weaknesses in the draft: the part dealing with

ear | y-war ni ng neasures and urgent procedures was too short, and nothing

was sai d about conmunications transnitted by the Committee through the

H gh Conmmi ssioner for Human Rights to the Secretary-General, the

Ceneral Assenbly and the Security Council when very urgent matters arose
There was no reference, noreover, to the evaluation of the early-warning
procedures already made by those three authorities; the States parties to the
Convention and the States Menbers of the United Nations were entitled to know
the results of that evaluation. The draft also gave no information on

coordi nati on between the activities of the Committee and those of other
United Nations bodies, in particular the Sub-Comm ssion, although the
Secretary- General had issued an appeal on that subject, which had been
endorsed by the Wirld Conference on Human Rights at Vienna and reiterated in
resol uti ons of the General Assenbly.

5. I n paragraph 12, furthernore, the concluding observations were presented
as being a collective opinion of the Conmittee. |In fact, that was not al ways
the case and any expert could decide not to join in the consensus on the
concl udi ng observations. It would therefore be preferable to onmt that
description. Paragraph 15 said that sone States | acked the political will to
conply fully with their reporting obligations. Even if the solution was in
the hands of the States thenselves, that was a failing on which the Conmittee
had a duty to express its views firmly without, of course, closing the door to
dialogue. In that regard, a distinction should be made between del ays in
reporting and non-submission of an initial report. Even if they had sone
excuses, the States in question were not, after all, in situations like
Somalia or Burundi. He proposed that if the Conmittee decided to recomend to
the General Assenbly that it specify by name those States parties which were
late in submitting their periodic reports, it should do the same for those

whi ch had not even sent their initial reports.



CERD ¢/ SR. 1167

page 3
6. The CHAI RMAN suggested that the solution proposed earlier by
M. Aboul - Nasr concerning reports that were |ong overdue should be applied
also to States which had not submitted an initial report. In view of the fact

that their excessive delay in reporting prevented it fromdischarging its
treaty obligations, the Cormittee would invite themto provide i nformati on and
take part in the discussion, and would point out to themthat, in the absence
of any response on their part, it would neverthel ess exam ne their situation
inregard to the Convention. |If a State, basing itself on the ternms of the
Convention, objected to such an examination, the Conmittee woul d not pursue
the matter.

7. M. ABOUL-NASR said that article 9 of the Convention was very explicit:
the Conmittee had to work on the basis of the infornmation given by the State
party when considering the situation in that State, although it could seek
additional information from other sources. Even an exam nation based on study
of the core docunent could be undertaken only with the State’'s agreenent.

8. M. GARVALOV said that if a State party declared that the core docunent
shoul d be considered as a report, the Conmittee could hardly object, but he
doubt ed whet her such a docunent could give it the information it required for
proper consideration of the inplenmentation of the Convention by that State.

9. M. van BOVEN said that there was a gap in the Convention since its
drafters had not allowed for the case in which States parties m ght not
cooperate with the Cormittee. The Committee should be creative in filling

that gap and seek the information it needed in reports that the States
concerned might have subnmitted to other bodies, such as the Internationa
Labour Organi zation, or under the Covenants or other conventions. |t was
i nadm ssible that the Committee should have to forgo consideration of the
situation of States parties that had not even sent a single report.

10. M. WO FRUM said that, whatever the difficulties involved, a State party
was required to report to the Conmttee at regular intervals. It was a rule
of law, noreover, that those who broke the | aw nust not gain advantage from
their om ssions. A way therefore had to be found, w thout condemning the
defaulting States, to convince themto enter into a dialogue with the

Commi ttee.

11. M. RECHETOV observed that a State not subnitting an initial report

ri sked becom ng the subject of an early-warning procedure. It could be
supposed that a State which had neglected to submt such a report had not
established the requisite legislative basis to deal with racial discrimnation
under its crimnal law, or the mechanisnms for applying the Convention or
neasures of |egal protection against racial discrimnination

12. He woul d provide witten comments on the draft to the secretariat, but

wi shed to point out orally that while reports were often not sent regularly,
they were subrmitted one day or another. That point must not be ignored.
However, the Comm ttee should indicate in the docunment that a |arge nunber of
States which had ratified the Convention were doing little to apply it; that
they were nevertheless required to do so, even if they believed they could say
that no racial discrimnation existed in their territories; that they should
not sinply present their constitutions and legislation in their reports, but



CERD/ C/ SR. 1167
page 4

shoul d al so describe the specific effects of the application of those
instruments; and, lastly, that not only the United States, but al so France and
a nunber of other States had nade reservati ons which they shoul d be encouraged
to withdraw.

13. A very inportant procedure not nentioned in the docunment under

di scussi on concerned the comunication that a State party could transmit to
the Conmittee when it considered that another State party was not giving
effect to the provisions of the Convention (art. 11 of the Convention). The
fact that States were not applying that procedure showed how far human rights
were politicized.

14. Lastly, paragraph 12 of the docunent stated that the Committee adopted
its concluding observations by consensus. He did not believe that was the
case: it adopted themwi thout a vote, but there was nothing in the rules of
procedure to the effect that the Comm ttee should adopt its concluding
observati ons by consensus.

15. M. SHAH asked how many countries had not submitted an initial report
but only a core docunent, and how nany had subnmitted neither an initial report
nor a core docunent. He thought, |ike M. Aboul-Nasr and M. van Boven, that

when a country had subnmitted a core docunent, the Committee coul d consider
that docunment with the help of the information contained in other docunents
submtted to other treaty bodies. But what was the Conmittee to do when there
was neither an initial report nor a core docunent?

16. The CHAIRMAN replied that eight States were nore than five years late in
submitting their initial reports. Gher initial reports were al so overdue,
but by less than five years. The secretariat would ascertai n whet her any of
those States parties had subnmitted a core docunent, which constituted the
first part of a report.

17. M. ABQOUL- NASR sai d that he associated hinmself with M. Rechetov's
conments on the docunent before the Comrittee. His position was that the
Conmittee could consider a report - whatever its title - froma State party
provided that the State party agreed to its exam nation by the Committee as a
report submitted under article 9 of the Convention. The Committee coul d not
oblige but only request a Menber State to prepare a report of a particular

ki nd. Another point to be borne in mnd was that the Commttee was not a
court of law. It exanmined reports, not situations, and coul d make suggestions
and recomendati ons based on that exanination (art. 9, paras. 1 and 2, of the
Conventi on).

18. Furthernore, he wished to draw the attention of the nenbers of the
Conmittee to the |l ast sentence of article 9, paragraph 2, which stated that
the Conmittee's "suggestions and general recomendati ons shall be reported to
the General Assenbly together with comments, if any, from States parties”

Had t he deci sions taken by the Cormittee, at the current session or previous
sessi ons, been conmunicated to the States parties? Had their comrents been
included in the Conmittee's report to the General Assenbly? He did not think
so. Lastly, he did not see how not subnmitting a report mght be to the
“advant age” of a State party, as suggested by M. Wl frum



CERD/ C/ SR. 1167
page 5

19. M. WO FRUM answering M. Aboul-Nasr, pointed out that if a State party
had not submitted an initial report and if, therefore, the Committee concl uded
that it could not discuss the application of the Convention in the State
concerned, that State would find itself in a better position than sone other
States which had submtted reports and had been criticized by the Conmittee.
In his view, a State which did not conply with article 9 should not escape the
Conmittee’s scrutiny on that account.

20. It could not, in fact, be said that the Committee had negl ected the
obligation to report "comments, if any, from States parties” to the
Ceneral Assenbly as no State had thus far taken the care to formul ate such
comrent s.

21. The CHAI RMAN poi nted out that, since the drafting of the text in
guestion, the Commttee had established the procedure of inviting a State to
send representatives to present its report to the Conmittee and to respond to
t he nenbers' questions and coments.

22. M. de GOUTTES said that, in principle, he was in favour of the docunent
under di scussion, which reviewed the achi evenents of the Conmittee in regard
to nethods of work and nmade those nethods transparent for the Conmittee's
partners. It bore the hallmark of the Conmittee's "prudent bol dness”, which
consisted in remaining faithful to the text of the Convention and its terns of
reference, while drawing fromthe Convention all the strength possible in
regard to States' obligations (including the recommendati on on sources of

i nformation, preventive neasures and urgent procedures).

23. Addi ti onal nention could be made of conmplaints from States, as proposed
by M. Rechetov, and of trust territories, as proposed by M. Aboul -Nasr. For
his part, he would like the docunent to include the Committee's 1990
recomendati on on the i ndependence of the experts, as well as a reference to
the practice of the neutrality of the expert who was a national of the country
whose report was being exam ned. In the section concerning relations with
other international bodies, he would like reference to be nmade to neetings of
the Conmittee with the Sub-Commi ssion

24, M. DI ACONU said he hoped that the few pages devoted to the Comittee's
nmet hods of work would be included in its report to the General Assenbly only
in 1996: repeating themevery year would be a waste of tinme. The idea of
conpl aints based on article 11 of the Convention was, in his view out of
date. No State had ever availed itself of that possibility and today hunman
rights were no longer a matter of conflict between States, but a concern of
the international community as a whole.

25. The Convention required the Conmittee to work on the basis of the
reports submitted by the States parties. Wat was the Committee to do when a
State party had not subnmitted an initial report? |If the State party in
guestion had submitted a core docunment, that showed a willingness on its part
to have its reports considered by at |least one treaty body. |In that case, the
State concerned nerely had to be requested to report to the Conmittee on the
Elim nation of Racial Discrimnation. |In the opposite case, the Commttee
could, for exanple, ascertain whether the country had reported to other

United Nations committees or bodies, or contact the country’ s del egati on at



CERD/ C/ SR. 1167
page 6

the General Assenbly. The Committee could al so subnmit a separate docunent,
besi des the report, to the General Assenbly; it would list the countries that
had not submitted reports and woul d be issued as a docunent of the

Ceneral Assenbly under the rel evant agenda item He did not think, however,
that the Committee could consider the inplenmentation of the Convention in any
particular country in the absence of a report: that was not within the
Committee’s terns of reference.

26. M. GARVALQOV said that, as he understood it, the Cormittee’s report
woul d from now on reproduce only its concludi ng observations relating to the
exam nation of States’ reports, and not the views expressed by States during
that examination. That would be a very serious omi ssion, and the Cormittee
shoul d be aware of the fact. He shared the opinion of M. de Gouttes
concerning the neutrality of the experts, as well as M. Diaconu s view that
the Conmittee' s report should be brought directly to the attention of the
Ceneral Assenbly, without going through the Third Conmittee. The best
solution, as he had hinself suggested earlier, mght be to informthe
Secretary-General directly of the main points in the Conmittee’ s report that
requi red not only urgent action but analysis.

27. M. CH GOVERA said that he wondered how many points - such as those
regarding the Conmittee’s nmethods of work - could be added to the report, and
how long it should be. There already appeared to have been sone innovations
inthe terns of reference set forth in article 9 (infornmation from other
sources, early-warning nmeasures, urgent procedures, preventive procedures).
In his view, the Conmttee sonetinmes had to interpret the Convention. |t

m ght, therefore, consider the situation in a country that was not fulfilling
its reporting obligations under the Convention

28. He woul d like the secretariat to prepare a draft text taking account of
all the commrents that had been nade. The Conmittee could then consider it
par agr aph by paragraph

29. M. AHMADU observed that reports by Menber States were beconi ng
increasingly rare and that sone States had thus far not even submitted their
initial reports. Mreover, the Conmittee on the Elimination of Racia

Di scrimnati on was not the only body concerned, as other United Nations
conmittees found thenselves in the same position. The problem was perhaps
partly to be explained by the way in which the Conmittee considered the
reports. |t had been reproached, for exanple, with acting like a crimna
court and with interfering in States’ internal affairs. There were two ways
of proceeding. The Committee could consider requesting the Secretary-CGenera
of the United Nations to take sanctions agai nst countries not fulfilling their
obligations - for exanple, preventing themfromvoting in the General Assenbly
or fromparticipating inits work. Another solution nmight be for the
Conmmittee to be | ess denanding and put itself nore in the place of the country
whose situation was bei ng consi dered.

30. The CHAIRMAN said that it would be difficult to inpose sanctions, and in
any event that was not the Committee’s role.

31. M. WO FRUM said that the Committee appeared to have | argely exhausted
the question and it was perhaps tinme to close the discussion. He would,



CERD/ C/ SR. 1167
page 7

however, like the report to the General Assenbly to indicate the sources

used by the Comm ttee and whet her or not reference would be nade to documents
from non-governnmental organi zations. That would give States parties and

non- gover nment al organi zati ons an i dea of how the Conmittee worked. Sone
States night not be reporting on tinme because they were overburdened. Despite
t he drawbacks, the subm ssion of a single report to all the treaty bodi es was
per haps the sol ution.

32. M. VALENCI A RODRI GUEZ pointed out that, in so far as overdue initial
reports were concerned, article 9 of the Convention was clear. |In that

regard, the Committee was not enpowered to change the Convention, but could
interpret it when a procedural problem arose. The best course of action under
the circunstances was to informthe General Assenbly that as fromthe next
session the Conmittee intended to notify States which had not yet submitted an
initial report that, in the absence of such a report, it would consider their
situation on the basis of reports submitted by themto other United Nations

bodi es and on studies prepared by the United Nations services. It was out of
t he question, however, to refer to docunents originating from non-government al
organi zations for that purpose. In its report to the General Assenbly, the

Conmittee could include a list of the States concerned. As the latter were
Menbers of the United Nations, the General Assenbly m ght adopt a reoslution
approving the course of action followed by the Conmittee.

33. M. ABQOUL-NASR said that in general he supported the solution proposed
by M. Val encia Rodriguez and agreed with himthat the Conm ttee nust avoid
usi ng sources other than Menber States’ reports and United Nations docunents
for the sinple reason that the validity of outside sources was not recogni zed
by all nenbers of the Committee and that sonme of themwere biased. Sone
nmenbers referred to the reports of the United Nations Departnent of State, but
he wondered whether it was appropriate to nake use of information provided by
one Menber States to examine the situation in another

34. Mention had been made in the discussion of the experts’ neutrality.

That concept made no sense in the context of the Conmittee’s work. Article 8
of the Convention spoke of “inpartiality” and the Conmittee nust apply that
criterion.

35. M. de GOUTTES agreed that he had not used the right word in speaking of
neutrality. It was the idea of inpartiality that he had actually had in m nd
when expressing the wish that the report should nention the practice whereby
the expert would not intervene in a discussion devoted to the consideration of
the situation in his own country.

36. M. RECHETOV, referring to M. Wl frums coments, said that the
Conmittee was an i ndependent body and that the experts serving on it were
appointed in their personal capacity. Sone held that, because of their
status, the experts must not take part in the consideration of the report of
the State of which they were nationals. He did not agree with that view,
which to himseened contrary to the provisions of the Convention. As well as
the criterion of inpartiality, there was the fact that the experts represented
different |egal systemand civilizations. Their non-participation in the
consi deration of the report concerning their country would deprive the



CERD/ C/ SR. 1167
page 8

Conmittee of their valuable expertise. As long as the discussion was open, no
one coul d doubt the inpartiality of the experts, and it was actually their
non-participation in the discussion that mght be interpreted as a sign of
dependence vis-a-vis their Governnent.

37. M. de GOUTTES, speaking in exercise of the right of reply, said that he
did not agree with M. Rechetov’'s interpretation of article 8, paragraph 1.
Inmpartiality was a fundanental obligation that the expert had to show in all
circunstances. The principle of the representation of different forns of
civilization and different |egal systens was, on the other hand, sinply a
criterion to be taken into account in the election of nenbers of the
Conmittee. Those were two quite distinct concepts.

38. M. YUTZIS said he had the inpression that the Committee was wasting its
time. The discussion would have been nore fruitful if each nmenber had
submitted his or her proposals in witing and if the report had then been
consi dered paragraph by paragraph. Unless nenbers of the Conmittee had

somet hing new or different to add, or what they wanted to say coul d not be
submitted in witing, he proposed tht the Conmmittee should nove on to the next
agenda item

39. M. LECHUGA HEVIA said that, while agreeing with the proposal of

M. Val encia Rodriguez, he wished to point out that the reports submtted by
States parties to other treaty bodies - docunents on which it was proposed
that the Committee should base itself in order to consider the situation in
countries that had not submitted initial reports - did not deal directly with
the question of racial discrimnation and therefore mght not be very usefu
to the Committee.

40. Ms. ZQU said that the Committee had devoted too nmuch tinme to exchanges
of views on general issues and it woul d have been nore useful to exam ne the
draft text itemby item The comments nade by nenbers of the Committee woul d
t hen have been nore focused.

41. The CHAI RMAN said that a new version of the docunent under consideration
woul d be prepared. |f he heard no objection, he would take it that the
Conmittee wi shed to adjourn the discussion of the text.

42, It was so deci ded.

Programme of work of the Committee

43. The CHAIRMAN invited the nmenmbers of the Conmittee to decide on the
programe of work for the next nmeeting, in view of the fact that the

consi deration of the reports of Nami bia and Venezuel a had been postponed unti
the foll owi ng afternoon

44, After a discussion in which M. CH GOVERA, M. D ACONU, M. W) FRUM

M. GARVALOV, M. YUTZIS, M. ABOUL-NASR and Ms. SADIQ ALl took part,

M. van BOVEN said that he was prepared to present what might be considered as
a report on the situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina. Regarding |srael,
however, it was inappropriate in his viewto consider the application of the
Convention in that country without a report containing the specific




CERD/ C/ SR. 1167
page 9

i nfornmati on requested by the Conmmittee. The Conmittee night al so consider
conmuni cations, if the secretariat was ready, or the working paper prepared by
the Chairman in connection with the neeting of persons chairing the

i nternational human rights treaty bodies.

45, M. RECHETOV said that he agreed with M. van Boven regardi ng the

consi deration of inplenmentation of the Convention in Israel. Bearing in mnd
the i nmportance of that country and the problenms with which it night be
confronted in the future, in particular owwng to its nmono-ethnic character, it
woul d be inadvisable to consider the situation if no report was avail abl e and
a del egati on was not present.

46. M. YUTZIS said that, in view of the urgency and conplexity of the
situation in Burundi, the Committee m ght request further information fromthe
Speci al Procedures Branch of the Centre for Human Ri ghts, which was nonitoring
the situation on a day-to-day basis.

47. M. de GOUTTES, supported by M. WIFRUM pointed out that the High
Conmi ssi oner for Human Ri ghts had provi ded up-to-date information on Burundi a
week earlier and the Conmittee had adopted a reconmmendati on concerni ng that
country. However, there was no reason why the Conmittee should not again
contact M. Ayala Lasso, as the High Conmissioner had hinself suggested, to
find out the | atest devel opnents concerni ng Burundi.

48. M. ABQOUL-NASR said that the Conmittee should not consider the report of
a State party, even under the urgent procedure, w thout the State concerned
havi ng been i nformed.

49, Answering a question fromM. SHAH , M. HUSBANDS (Secretary of the
Conmmittee) said that the Conmittee's recomrendati on concerni ng Burundi and the
| etter acconpanying it had been transnitted on the sanme day as the adoption of
the recomendation to the officer-in-charge of the International I|nstruments
Branch for conmunication to the Assistant Secretary-General for Human Ri ghts
and the H gh Conmi ssioner for Human Ri ghts.

50. M. SHAH said that he did not understand why the Conmittee coul d not
send a letter directly to the Secretary-General under the urgent procedure, as
had been its practice before the institution of the post of H gh Conm ssi oner
for Hunman R ghts.

51. M. WIFRUM noted that, under the ternms of article 9 of the Convention,
the Conmittee could conmunicate directly with the Secretary-General of the
United Nati ons.

52. M. GARVALOV said that no reservation of any kind vis-a-vis the High
Conmi ssioner for Human Rights or the Assistant Secretary-General for Human

Ri ghts nust be construed in the fact that the Cormittee wi shed to approach the
Secretary-General directly.

53. M. van BOVEN pointed out that the Secretary-General of the

United Nations had a dual function: on the one hand, he was the

adnmi ni strative head of the United Nations Secretariat; and, on the other hand,
he had a political role, particularly in regard to activities concerning the




CERD/ C/ SR. 1167
page 10

Security Council. The Conmittee could approach the Secretary-General directly
in his political capacity, but when comunicating with himas head of the

adm nistration, it should go through the appropriate channels. Cdearly, with
regard to the recomrendati on on Burundi, the Conmittee wi shed to approach the
Secretary-CGeneral directly in his political capacity.

54. M. ABQOUL-NASR said that the Secretary-General could not possibly take
note of the vast nunber of communications sent to himevery day. It therefore
seened appropriate, in his view, that the Committee shoul d approach him

t hrough the Assistant Secretary-Ceneral for Hunman Rights, for exanple, and no
form of censure could be seen in that procedure.

55. The CHAIRMAN said that, at its next nmeeting, the Conmittee would
therefore consider the situation in Bosnia and Herzegovina, then

conmuni cations, and lastly the working paper he had prepared in connection
with the neeting of persons chairing the international human rights treaty
bodi es.

56. M. SHAHI, supported by M. CH GOVERA, said that for the purpose of
adopting its concluding observations after the consideration of a State
party's report, the Commttee nmust have the text of those observations in al
t he wor ki ng | anguages, as well as the text of the summary records of the
neetings at which the report in question had been consi dered.

57. The CHAI RMAN poi nted out that the summary records of neetings were
prepared alternately in English and in French

The neeting rose at 5.40 p.m




